ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE COVMUNI TY AND REG ONAL AFFAI RS STANDI NG COWM TTEE
April 9, 2015
3:32 p.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Cick Bishop, Chair
Senator Bert Stedman, Vice Chair
Senat or Lyman Hof f man

Senat or Denni s Egan

VEVMBERS ABSENT
Senat or Anna MacKi nnon
COW TTEE CALENDAR

COW TTEE SUBSTI TUTE FOR HOUSE BI LL NO 146( CRA)
"An Act relating to a nmunicipal tax exenption for certain
subdi vi ded property."

- MOVED SCS CSHB 146(CRA) OQUT OF COW TTEE

SENATE BI LL NO. 79
"An Act relating to reenploynent of persons who retire under the
defined benefit plan of the teachers' retirenent system”

- HEARD & HELD

SENATE BILL NO 88

"An Act relating to new defined benefit tiers in the public
enpl oyees'’ retirement system and the teachers’ retirenent
system providing certain enployees an opportunity to choose
between the defined benefit and defined contribution plans of
the public enployees' retirement system and the teachers’
retirement system and providing for an effective date.™

- HEARD & HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 146

SHORT TI TLE: MUNI Cl PAL TAX EXEMPTI ON
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) MUNOZ

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -1- April 9, 2015



03/ 12/ 15
03/ 12/ 15
03/ 24/ 15
03/ 24/ 15
03/ 24/ 15
03/ 25/ 15
03/ 25/ 15
03/ 25/ 15

03/ 27/ 15
03/ 27/ 15
03/ 30/ 15
03/ 30/ 15
04/ 07/ 15
04/ 07/ 15
04/ 07/ 15
04/ 09/ 15

BILL: SB 79

NN AN NN AN AN

QLI TIITIIIIZ

NN AN AN AN

Qe

(S

READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS

CRA

CRA AT 8: 00 AM BARNES 124

Moved CSHB 146(CRA) Qut of Conmittee
M NUTE( CRA)

CRA RPT CS(CRA) 2DP 5NR

DP: SEATON, TILTON

NR.  REI NBOLD, NAGEAK, DRUMVOND, ORTI Z,
HUGHES

TRANSM TTED TO (S)

VERSI ON:  CSHB 146( CRA)

READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS

CRA, FIN

CRA AT 3:30 PM BELTZ 105 ( TSBI dg)
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( CRA)

CRA AT 3:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)

SHORT TI TLE: REEMPLOYMENT OF RETI RED TEACHERS & ADM N

SPONSOR( s) :

03/ 18/ 15
03/ 18/ 15
03/ 26/ 15
03/ 26/ 15
03/ 26/ 15
03/ 31/ 15
03/ 31/ 15
03/ 31/ 15
04/ 02/ 15
04/ 02/ 15
04/ 07/ 15
04/ 07/ 15
04/ 07/ 15
04/ 07/ 15
04/ 07/ 15
04/ 08/ 15
04/ 08/ 15
04/ 08/ 15
04/ 08/ 15
04/ 09/ 15

BILL: SB 88

(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
()

SENATOR(s) DUNLEAVY

READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
EDC, CRA

EDC AT 3:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( EDC)

EDC AT 3:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( EDC)

EDC AT 3:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
Schedul ed but Not Heard

CRA AT 3:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
<Pendi ng Referral >

EDC AT 3:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
Moved CSSB 79(EDC) Qut of Conmittee
M NUTE( EDC)

EDC RPT CS 1DP 1NR 3AM NEW Tl TLE
DP: DUNLEAVY

NR: HUGAE NS

AM STEVENS, d ESSEL, GARDNER
CRA AT 3:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)

SHORT TI TLE: TEACHERS & PUB EMPLOYEE RETI REMENT PLANS

SPONSOR( s) :

SENATE CRA COW TTEE

SENATOR(s) EGAN

- 2- April 9, 2015



03/ 25/ 15 (S) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS

03/ 25/ 15 (S) CRA, FIN
04/ 09/ 15 (S) CRA AT 3:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
04/ 09/ 15 (S) CRA AT 3:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)

W TNESS REG STER

TERRY HARVEY, Staff

Representative Cathy Minoz

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provided an overview of HB 146 on behal f of
t he sponsor.

SHEI LA PETERSON, St af f

Senat or M ke Dunl eavy

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provided an overview of SB 79 on behal f of
t he sponsor.

LI SA SKI LES PARADY, Executive Director

Al aska Counci | of School Admi ni strators, and Al aska
Superi nt endents Associ ation

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 79.

PETER HOEPFNER, Menber

Cordova School District Board of Education
Cordova, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 79.

PEGGY COMN, Superintendent

North Sl ope Borough School District

Barrow, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 79.

CHRI S REI TAN, Superi ntendent

Galena City School District

Gal ena, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 79.

DEENA PARAMDO, Superi nt endent

Mat anuska- Susi t na Borough School District

Pal mer, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 79.

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 3- April 9, 2015



PATRI CK MAYER, Superi nt endent

W angel | Public School District

W angel |, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 79.

MARY MCMAHON, Presi dent-El ect

Al aska Associ ation of School Principals

Pal mer, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 79.

JESSE Kl EHL, Staff

Senat or Denni s Egan

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Suppl enented the introduction of SB 88.

AARON DANI ELSQON, Presi dent

Publ i c Saf ety Enpl oyees Associ ation

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 88.

JACOB BERA, nenber

Region VI Board of Directors

Nat i onal Educati on Associ ati on- Al aska

Chugi ak, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 88.

PEGGY COMN, Superi ntendent

North Sl ope Borough School District

Barrow, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 88.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

3:32: 05 PM

CHAIR CLICK BISHOP called the Senate Community and Regional
Affairs Standing Comrittee neeting to order at 3:32 p.m Present
at the call to order were Senators Stedman, Hoffman, Egan, and
Chai r Bi shop.

HB 146- MUNI Cl PAL TAX EXEMPTI ON

3:33:18 PM
CHAI R BI SHOP announced the consideration of HB 146. [Senate CS
for CSHB 146, | abel ed 29-LS0048\H, was before the commttee.]

3:33:25 PM

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -4- April 9, 2015



TERRY HARVEY, Staff, Representative Cathy Minoz, Alaska State
Legi slature, Juneau, Alaska, summarized that HB 146 is an
optional tool for nunicipalities to help develop land for
housi ng. He said HB 146 addresses a housing issue by
incentivizing developnent of three or nore lots on a piece of
property. He specified that HB 146 would allow for a
muni ci pality, if they choose, to abate the increase in property
tax above and beyond the property tax base at the tine
devel opnment begins, until the property went into commercial or
residential use where the full assessnent kicks in for the
muni ci pality. He sunmarized that HB 146 has flexibility for a
muni ci pality to choose to abate all or a portion of the increase
in property taxes.

CHAI R BI SHOP confirned that public testinobny was closed at the
last neeting and noted that the bill had overwhelmng public
support.

3:35:15 PM
At ease.

3:35:41 PM

SENATOR STEDVAN noved to report the bill [29-LS0048\H from
commttee with individual recomrendations, attached fiscal note,
and title change.

CHAIR BISHOP found no objection and announced that [SCS CSHB
146(CRA)] was noved from the Senate Community and Regional
Affairs Standing Comm ttee.

3:36: 06 PM
At ease.

SB 79- REEMPLOYMENT OF RETI RED TEACHERS & ADM N

3:37:30 PM
CHAI R Bl SHOP announced the consi derati on of SB 79.

3:38: 05 PM
SHEI LA PETERSQON, Staff, Senator M ke Dunleavy, Al aska State
Legi sl ature, Juneau, Al aska, said she would address SB 79 and
the commttee substitute that passed out of the Senate Education
Conmi ttee.

M5. PETERSON reveal ed that Alaska is experiencing a shortage of
qualified educators, especially in hard to fill areas, and the

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 5- April 9, 2015



situation is conpounded by the drastic reduction in state
revenue due to lower oil prices. SB 79 expands the pool for
experienced and qualified teachers available to school
districts. SB 79 beconmes another tool for the school districts
to be able to reach and educate Al aska's students.

She set forth that the bill allows school districts to reenploy
educat ors younger than 62 who have been retired for one year, or
educators older than 62 who have been retired for at |east 3

mont hs. She specified that SB 79 will not require any school
district to reenploy any particular individual, the bill only
gives the school district the option to do so. She noted that
educators rehired wunder the bill's proviso receive their

retirement benefits during the period of reenpl oynent.

3:39:47 PM

She explained that the Division of Reti r enent Benefits
recoomended that the CS in the Senate Education Conmittee
require school districts to pay the standard 12.56 percent to
the Teachers' Retirenment System (TRS) that is based on the
educator's salary. She noted that the standard 12.56 percent is
the sane rate that the school districts nust pay for active
enpl oyees.

She revealed that a recent Al aska Teacher Placenent (ATP) Job
Fair had 707 openings for teachers and administrators, only 265
candi dates attended. She asserted that the job fair shows the
disparity between people |ooking for jobs and the openings that
school districts have.

She summari zed that SB 79 does not replace active enpl oyees, but
provi des school districts with another tool to be able to staff
t heir school s.

SENATOR HOFFMAN asked where the job fair openings were | ocated.

M5. PETERSON replied that she did not know, but would provide
addi tional information.

3:41: 37 PM

SENATOR STEDVAN asked to verify that a local school district
pays the normal 12.56 percent TRS rate. He asked what the future
accurrul ated benefits are when a rehired-teacher is pulling in a
pensi on.

M5. PETERSON expl ai ned that Senator Dunl eavy envisioned a school
district first going to active enployees to fill positions and

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 6- April 9, 2015



then turning to retired teachers if a position cannot be filled.
She added that a reenployed teacher would maintain their
retirement benefits throughout their reenpl oynent period.

SENATOR STEDVAN asked that Ms. Peterson address the accunul ation
of any future additional benefits.

M5. PETERSON replied that there is no accunulation of any future
benefits.

SENATOR STEDVAN asked to verify that there is no inpact on
potential wunfunded liabilities where the school district just
pays the 12.56 percent to help mtigate the unfunded liability.

M5. PETERSON answered that Senator Dunleavy asked the Division
of Retirenment and Benefits to submt a reasonable fiscal note
that would not slow down the bill's concept and provide school
districts wth another hiring tool. She noted that the
division's actuary was concerned that current enployees m ght be
incentivized to retire early and go back on the rolls as
reenpl oyed retired teachers. She asserted that Senator Dunleavy
does not think the actuary's concerns would be the case, but the
CS proposed in the Senate Education Conmttee helps mtigate any
potential increase into the unfunded liability.

3:44:21 PM
CHAI R Bl SHOP asked how many school districts will be inpacted by
SB 79.

M5. PETERSON replied that school districts have been asking for
the option provided by SB 79. She surmised that a third to a

half of Al aska's 53 school districts will be interested in
rehiring retired teachers. She explained that Senator Dunleavy
envisions the bill's benefit, particularly in rural Alaska wth
30 percent turnover rate, is to supplenent new hires wth

experi enced teachers that know Al aska and can act as a nentor to
the new teachers. She noted that Senator Dunleavy was a | eader
several years ago of the nentor program and saw firsthand the
benefits from nentoring.

3:47:02 PM

LI SA SKI LES PARADY, Executive Director, Alaska Council of Schoo
Adm nistrators, and Al aska Superintendents Association (ASA),
Juneau, Al aska, said she had prepared testinony but would also
answer questions.

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -7- April 9, 2015



CHAI R BI SHOP asked for hypotheticals that could be enployed if
SB 79 becane | aw.

MS. SKI LES PARADY reveal ed turnover rates as foll ows:

e 30 percent or higher in rural areas,
e 7 percent or higher for teachers in urban areas,
* 14 percent for principals,

e 50 percent for superintendents new to Al aska over the past
2 years.

She explained that in ternms of answering Senator Bishop's
guestion wll depend on the position's greater need where
rehiring retired superintendents will be used nore than rehiring
retired urban teachers.

She provided a breakdown of 707 positions available at the ATP
Job Fair as follows:

e admnistrative positions: 53,

e athletic positions: 15,

e elenmentary teaching positions: 125,

* high school teaching positions: 115,
* mddl e school teaching positions: 43,
e nutrition services and other: 116,

e student support services: 131.

She pointed out that the 265 people attending the recent ATP Job
Fair in addition to the University of Al aska (UA) producing
about 250 people shows that there is a supply-demand i ssue.

She said questions have been asked whether new teachers will be
denied the opportunity to take the positions; school districts
wish they had that problem but that is not the current
situation.

She sunmarized that rehiring retired teachers will see limted
use, but the ability to rehire retired teachers wll add an
additional tool. She surmsed that under half of the school
districts will rehire retired teachers.

3:50: 34 PM

CHAIR BI SHOP noted that there are 53 school districts in Al aska.
He asked that Ms. Skiles Parady provide an approximtion of how
many positions would be filled by rehired retirees.

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 8- April 9, 2015



M5. SKILES PARADY answered that |ess than 200 teachers were
hired the last tinme rehiring retirees was in |law. She said the
school districts' needs are greater now, but rehiring retirees
shoul d be conparable. She noted that 85 percent of UA graduates
are working in education occupations, but a greater need stil
exi sts.

3:52: 02 PM
SENATOR STEDMAN asked what the current status was for retire-
r ehir ees.

M5. SKILES PARADY answered that school districts are allowed to
hire up to 49 percent of the tinme for a position. She admtted
that recruiting soneone for a halftinme position in a highly
qualified or high needs area |ike special education, math, or
science is al nost inpossible to do.

3:54: 01 PM
SENATOR STEDVAN asked that M. Skiles Parady explain what 49
percent mneans.

M5. SKILES PARADY answered that 49 percent refers to time where
49 percent is less than hal ftine.

SENATOR HOFFMAN noted that the turnover rates for rural Al aska
was 30 percent and 7 percent in urban Al aska. He asked why the
intent was to make the program statewi de when the obvious
problem is in rural Alaska. He inquired why the legislation is
not made to address only hiring retired individuals in areas
t hat have the hi ghest turnover percentage.

M5. SKILES PARADY concurred that there is a greater need in
rural Al aska, but noted that one of the l|argest school districts
has suffered from not being able to recruit special education
teachers. She stated that the teachers and admnistrators
shortage is a statewide issue that inpacts both rural and urban
Al aska.

3:56:19 PM

SENATOR HOFFMAN asked if there is anything that can be done to
address the areas in the state that have the highest turnover.
He said the legislation seens to set into notion a program to
hire retirees to address a statewide problem but four tines as
much of a problem in rural Al aska versus urban Al aska. He
asserted that the majority of retire-rehires will occur in the
ur ban areas.

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 9- April 9, 2015



M5. SKILES PARADY answered that she agreed that recruiting for
rural areas is nore difficult, but urban areas struggle equally
to recruit highly specialized areas where teachers in specia
education, math, and science are in short supply both in Al aska
and nationally. She noted that retire-rehire is one of ASA' s
hi ghest priorities.

3:58: 55 PM

SENATOR HOFFMAN asked what the special education teacher
turnover rates were in rural versus urban Al aska. He assuned
t hat special education teachers are nore specialized and tend to
| ook at getting enployed in urban areas.

MS. SKI LES PARADY responded that she will provide specific data.
She conceded that specialized positions are hard to recruit for.
She said 131 specialized openings exist and the nunber of
positions open clinbs every day.

SENATOR HOFFMAN asked if the Legislature should wait on SB 79 to
see exactly what happens with teacher |ayoffs due to the budget
cuts that are being contenpl at ed.

M5. SKILES PARADY replied that ASA hopes that the Legislature
passes SB 79 because districts are not required to rehire
retirees, but the |legislation provides another tool as a
possibility.

SENATOR HOFFMAN asked if there are prograns or |egislation that
can be proposed to target hiring teachers in rural Al aska and
does ASA have any recommendations in that regard.

4:01: 38 PM

M5. SKILES PARADY replied that ASA supports all districts. She
noted that ASA has been on record supporting things |Iike
mentoring. She stated that nentoring focuses on rural Al aska and
is a best practice to retain teachers.

SENATOR HOFFMAN responded that nmentoring is an existing program
He asked if ASA has any new recomendations to address the high
turnover rate in rural Al aska.

M5. SKILES PARADY answered that SB 79 is legislation that has
conme directly from superintendents in rural areas.

SENATOR HOFFMAN asked specifically if legislation is being put
forward that is ainmed at those areas that have 30 percent

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -10- April 9, 2015



turnover, not over-arching legislation that addresses the whole
st at e.

M5. SKILES PARADY replied that ASA has not put forward ideas
specific to the 30 percent turnover rate in rural Al aska.

SENATOR HOFFMAN asked which state organization is |ooking at the
high turnover rate in rural Alaska and is trying to find a
sol uti on.

M5. SKILES PARADY answered that ASA and the Al aska School Boards
Association are the two organizations. She remarked that not
splitting between urban and rural is a very inportant tenet for
bot h organi zations. She said ASA advocates for the entire state
and both wurban and rural areas are suffering from the high
turnover rate.

SENATOR HOFFMAN replied that he is not trying to divide urban
and rural. He detailed that he is trying to acknow edge that
there is four tines the problemin rural Al aska than there is in
urban Alaska. He said students suffer when there are high
turnover rates and asked what can be done to get the students in
rural Al aska on parity by reducing the turnover rate.

4:04:52 PM

CHAI R Bl SHOP asked that when exit reviews are done, why teachers
and superintendents are leaving. He remarked that fixing the
turnover rate cannot be done until the reason for leaving is
known. He pointed out that there are rural districts wth
teachers that have served for 20 years. He recommended that
rural districts that have retained teachers for 20 years be
asked how they are doing it. He noted another problem where he
knows UA-Fairbanks graduates that have applied for teaching
positions that could not get hired in Al aska, but states |ike
Ari zona have hired themimedi ately.

4:07:17 PM

SENATOR STEDVMAN revealed that he has 12 of the 53 school
districts in his district and he nonitors turnover rates and
performance scores. He said he does not have a good feel for
regional data on the state's other school districts. He said
having additional data for the bill will allow the commttee to
focus on either the problem areas versus a broad statew de
appr oach.

M5. SKILES PARADY replied that she will provide a turnover rate
breakdown by geographic area. She addressed Chair Bishop's

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -11- April 9, 2015



previ ous statenent and noted that districts do read their exit
interviews. She added that part of what has happened is the
state has lost conpetitiveness in terns of salaries and
retirement benefits. She asserted that Al aska no |longer is able
to hold its own against the Lower 48, particularly with pending
district cuts. She noted that rural areas also face
technol ogi cal issues due to internet limtations.

4:10: 35 PM

PETER HOEPFNER, nmenber, Cordova School District Board of
Education, Cordova, Al aska, stated that SB 79, the retire-rehire
bill, is a good bill. He revealed that the Cordova School
District faced a sudden departure of its superintendent in md-
July and was allowed special dispensation to hire a retired
superintendent for the school year. He said SB 79 wll allow
districts to wutilize teachers and admnistrators during a
crisis. He set forth that the bill would be an excellent tool
that districts could use to fill positions critical to schools
when facing an unexpected vacancy outside of the regular hiring
season. He pointed out that there are not an adequate nunber of
teachers applying for all of the open positions and the
superi ntendent pool has been dimnishing over the past nunber of
years.

4:13: 35 PM

PEGGY COWAN, Superi nt endent , North Slope Borough Schoo
District, Barrow, Alaska, stated that she supports SB 79 and
noted that the Al aska Council of School Adm nistrators nade the
bill's legislation one of its statewide priorities. She reveal ed
that the North Slope Borough School District has 27 vacancies
remai ning and added that a teacher resigned prior to the start
of the previous year and the position was not replaced until

January. She asserted that the bill wuld help provide
flexibility for a district in high quality hires. She noted that
she was superintendent in Juneau when a simlar bill was in

pl ace and the district rarely used it, but the district did hire
retirees nostly for specialist positions. She pointed out that
the new anendnent where the districts are billed for the TRS
retirement was different than it has been with Alaska Public
Enpl oyees' Retirenment System (PERS). She remarked that she was
wondering why there is a difference with TRS and PERS.

4:17:16 PM
CHRIS REITAN, Superintendent, Galena GCty School District,
Gal ena, Al aska, stated that SB 79 was a good bill and provides

one extra tool for school districts in the recruiting process
with no financial harm to the state. He pointed out that

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -12- April 9, 2015



superintendents have turned over quite a bit in the state and
districts are scranbling to find adm nistrators who have Al askan
experience and success who can provide dedicated |eadership in

difficult tinmes. He sunmarized that the bill provides one nore
avenue to fill high needs areas and positions that cannot be
filled.

4:19: 06 PM

DEENA PARAMO, Superintendent, Matanuska-Susitna Borough School
District, Palnmer, Al aska, stated that for years the Mat-Su
School District has accessed the extensive experience and
expertise of retired enployees and educators by allowing for
tenporary and part-tinme enploynent opportunities. She asserted
that the district's efforts to capitalize on a talented veteran
wor kf orce have been severely limted without a provision to
allow for the unrestricted reenploynment of retirees such as SB
79.

M5. PARAMO stated that as she understands the proposed bill
would permt districts to essentially enter into an at-wll
enpl oynment agreenent with a retired teacher or adm nistrator, so
long as the individual has been retired for 3 nonths or a year

depending on age. She detailed that current protections and
benefits such as tenure, sick |eave, and health insurance would
not be required as the nature of the enploynent relationship
with a retired individual

She assured the commttee that the reenploynent of retired
teachers is not pursued in Mat-Su to avoid the hire of new
teachers. She said retirees fill gaps when properly certified
staff cannot be hired in hard to fill areas. She added that SB
79 can provide significant savings where certain costs, nost
notably health insurance, would not need to be provided to
retirees. She remarked that savings could be redirected back to
the classroom environment or even used to hire new classroom
t eachers.

She concurred with Senator Hoffrman's sentinent in regards to
incentivizing rural Alaska for teachers. She proposed that

anot her bill cone forward where individuals are offered an extra
$10, 000 per year to be collected after the third or fifth year
of rural -service. She summarized that having a stable

educational environment was an inperative for children al
around Al aska.

4:22:26 PM

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -13- April 9, 2015



PATRI CK MAYER, Superintendent, Wangell Public School District,
Wangell, Alaska, said he supports the legislation but was
puzzled to see the anendnent suggesting a 12 percent
contribution for rehires paid for by the school district. He
said there is a shortage of teachers, princi pal s, and
superi nt endent s. He added that the turnover rate for
superintendents has been 50 percent over the past 2 years. He
noted that there is a national shortage of teachers and asserted
that Al aska was not conpetitive in benefits and salaries wth
the Lower 48, especially in recruiting special education, math,
and sci ence educators.

MR. MAYER renmarked that the bill is not a tool to msuse and
will be used when needed, but he asserted that the district
encourages new hires to fill vacant spots. He set forth that SB
79 would allow districts to fill positions in a manner that

won't negatively inpact a retired teacher where the individua
would continue to collect their retirenent benefits while the
cost of the district would be mnimal. He sunmmarized that SB 79
would be a great tool in the district's toolbox in allow ng the
option of enploying retired teachers.

4:24:57 PM

MARY MCMAHON, President-Elect, Al aska Association of Schoo
Principals, Palnmer, Al aska, stated that SB 79 would provide the
best educators by increasing the pool of candidates for Al aska's
students, especially when the state is experiencing a shortage
in securing quality candidates. She remarked that she did not
have a concern in people retiring and wanting to get back into
the system right away. She set forth that retirees that return
to public education could very well be the best candidates to do
the job in serving the best interests of students and school s.

4:27:46 PM

CHAIR BI SHOP closed public testinony and announced that SB 79
would be held in commttee. He called on school districts to
consider how they are planning for succession in growing their
own teachers, principals, and superintendents.

4:29:07 PM
At ease.

SB 88- TEACHERS & PUB EMPLOYEE RETI REMENT PLANS

4:30: 06 PM

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -14- April 9, 2015



CHAIR BISHOP called the commttee back to order and announced
t he consi derati on of SB 88.

4:31:16 PM
SENATOR EGAN, as the sponsor, introduced SB 88 as foll ows:

SB 88 let's teachers, police, firefighters, and other
public enpl oyees choose one of two state retirenent
systens: an individual defined contribution retirenent
account, or earning a new defined benefit pension.

A defined benefit pension takes time to earn, but it
rewards public servants by letting them earn a
guaranteed nonthly benefit when they retire. For |ong-
term enployees, they <can earn help paying for
heal thcare, they can stay in Al aska and pay property
taxes to their local nunicipality. Al aska' s teachers
and public enployees don't earn the private sector's
defined benefit of Social Security and many even | ose
Social Security benefits they earned in their past
jobs. For nost, a defined benefit pension makes sense,
but many will still choose defined contribution; as an
exanple, sone have a mlitary or private sector
pensi on or sonme have a spouse enployed in Al aska and
only plan to stay a few years. Ohers want to contro

their investnents or take their savings to their next
j ob, they could choose defined contribution.

SB 88 creates a new, nore stable and nore predictable
defined benefit pension tier. A few years ago, Al aska
beefed up oversight of the pension system SB 88 keeps
those smart safeguards, meking Alaska's retirenent
system stronger than ever. Analysis of a previous
version of this bill showed it saved the state about
$70 mllion in 5 years and it is cost neutral in the
long term it shares the risk of rising health costs
bet ween enpl oyees and enpl oyers, and it adds nothing,
not one red-cent to the unfunded liabilities from the
past. To nmeke the new system cost neutral, enployees
will share the risk of health costs rising in the
future, that's a risk worth taking, | think, and is
fair to Al askans.

4:33:55 PM

JESSE  KI EHL, Staff, Senat or Dennis  Egan, Al aska State
Legi slature, Juneau, Alaska, noted that testinony from the
previous bill pointed out some of the difficulties in the very

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 15- April 9, 2015



conpl ex question of teacher retention. He stated that he would

focus on the econom c inpact of pensions as foll ows:

The total economic inpact of just the PERS and TRS
pensions to Alaska, according to an independent
research group, is about $1.4 billion in our econony.
More than 70 percent of Alaska's PERS and TRS retirees
stay in-state and that's by design, the pension system
has a cost of living increase if you retire in Al aska.
The PERS and TRS trust together paid nore than $1

billion in fiscal year 2014 in pension paynents,
roughly 90 percent of those dollars stayed in state
So that really will show you how effective that is in

hel ping Alaska's public servants to retire here in
Al aska, and as Senator Egan said, have honmes in their
communities and contribute to their |ocal econom es.
In that sense, the pension system has been one of the
shock-absorbers for our econony through the national
downturn, there have been a nunber of them certainly
healthy capital budgets were a nmjor piece; but,

t hrough the coming years, that nore than $1 billion in
functionally payroll, retirenment payroll, and an
additional $500 mllion in nedical benefits, will be a

huge el ement in keeping our |ocal econom es healthy.

4: 36: 35 PM
MR, KIEHL stated that SB 88 addresses turnover as foll ows:

SB 88 also addresses a nmjor cost for the State of
Al aska from nunicipalities and school districts of
turnover. The cost of training new enployees is very
hi gh and when you can retain good enployees, not |ose
them to other places and other folks, you save a |ot
of public dollars, you make a nmuch nore efficient use
of the public treasury, that is of course vital to
muni ci palities and school districts using |ocal
property taxes. Just to give you a couple of, frankly
fairly dated estimates, ten years ago the Departnent
of Fish and Gane estimated the cost of training a new
bi ol ogi st was $16,000 in their first couple of years,
the Departnent of Public Safety estimated that a new
state trooper through the acadeny, equipnment, and
trai ning was $150, 000.

For those who wish to earn a pension, those who choose
to nake that choice, at present, that is not avail able
to them in Al aska, and so we are beginning to see in

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -16- April 9, 2015



exit interviews an increasing nunber of folks who
elect to begin their careers here, get significant
training, and then take their portable retirenent
benefit south. Now for those who want to do that,
that's the ideal choice and SB 88 retains that choice
for them but for those who would prefer to stay in
Al aska throughout their Ilives, stay local as we grow
our own, the opportunity to earn a pension cones back
into existence with SB 88.

4:38:19 PM

CHAIR BISHOP noted that there was no need for a sectional
anal ysis, because the bill does not have a fiscal note at the
present tine. He stated that he |ooks forward to ultimately
reviewing the bill's nunbers in Senate Finance.

MR KIEHL summari zed as foll ows:

Enpl oyees will pay nore of their paychecks into this
new defined benefit tiers than any of the old defined
benefit tier. Enployees will contribute nore cash and
will always pay a share of their healthcare in
retirement; in the old defined benefit tiers, that was
not the case. In this tier, depending on how |ong you
serve, you wll pay anywhere from 10 percent to 30

percent or nore of your retiree health insurance; that
saves a great deal of noney, it shares a great deal of
risk with the enployees, and there is an adjuster in
the bill that ensures that the pre-funding cost, the
anount we put away each pay period, pre-fund these
benefits as they are earned, doesn't exceed the
defined contribution. So our pre-funding systenms wll
be equal no matter which system our enployees choose.
M . Chairman, you alluded to the forth comng
anal ysis, the departnent has worked very closely with
our office, we understand that they are begi nning work
on analysis and will work with us on the bill and we
appreciate their willingness to get that rolling and
work with the sponsor.

CHAI R BI SHOP expressed that he |ooks forward to reviewi ng the
nunbers to see if the state really can save nobney because the
Legi slature needs to look at all ways to save revenue regardl ess
of econom c conditions due to oil prices.

4:41:10 PM

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -17- April 9, 2015



AARON DANI ELSON, President, Public Safety Enpl oyees Associ ation,
Fai r banks, Al aska, remarked that the value of experience is what
Alaska is losing with having the current Tier [V plan. He
di sclosed that many police and fire officers have l|left Al aska
because the state cannot keep up with Lower 48 offerings.

4:43:10 PM

JACOB BERA, nenber, Region VI Board of Directors, National
Educati on Associ ati on- Al aska, Chugi ak, Al aska, said SB 88 woul d
greatly inprove the current public enployee retirenent plan,
i nprove teacher quality and retention, and save the State of
Al aska noney. He noted that according to statistics from Buck
Consul tants, Alaska has hired 3,037 teachers since 2006, by 2012
only 632 of those teachers have stayed in Al aska nore than 5
years; this has led to nore cost in recruitnent and training,
leading to the revolving door in the classroom that does not
contribute positively to educational outconmes for students. He
set forth that SB 88 creates a choice-pension system that helps
attract and retain quality and effective teachers for the |ong
haul , especially in specialized, high need areas in education
and for rural Alaska. He disclosed that according to state
actuaries, new healthcare costs safeguards and snaller enployer
contributions, SB 88 would save $70 mllion over 10 years.

4:46: 40 PM

PEGGY COWAN, Superi nt endent , North Slope Borough School
District, Barrow, Alaska, stated that she supports SB 88 for the
sane reasons that she supports SB 79. She noted that SB 88 gives
opti ons, especially in recruiting the "mllennial” aged
wor kforce. She summarized that defined benefits do neke a
difference for attracting long term teachers and asserted that
retention is good for Al aska's students.

4:47:46 PM
CHAI R Bl SHOP announced that public testinony is closed. He said
SB 88 will be held in commttee.

4:48: 27 PM

There being no further business to cone before the commttee,
Chair Bi shop adjourned the Senate Community and Regional Affairs
Standing Commttee hearing at 4:48 p.m

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 18- April 9, 2015



